
AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor
Monday, June 10, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation and Pledge

4. Announcements

5. Approval of the Agenda

6. Approval of the Minutes

• Regular Meeting held Monday, December 11, 2023

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. ZSP C2400113: Jim Chapman Construction Group has petitioned to amend the site plan;

located at 796 HWY 53 East and 2120 Perimeter Road (TMP 093 043; 093 044, 093 046,

093 047). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on Monday, June 10, 2024, and

City Council Monday, June 17, 2024. City Council for a decision on Monday, July 15, 2024.

8. VAR C2400124: Jim Chapman Construction Group has requested to reduce the front

building setback from 30 feet to 10 feet; located at 796 HWY 53 East and 2120 Perimeter

Road (TMP 093 043, 093 044, 093 046, 093 047). Public Hearing Dates: Planning

Commission on Monday, June 10, 2024.

9. ZA C2400125: Davis Engineering & Surveying has petitioned a zoning amendment for

TMP D03 014 and 0928 011; located at 401 HWY 9 North from HB (Highway Business)

and LI (Light Industrial) to R-6 (Multiple-Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates:

Planning Commission on Monday, June 10, 2024, and City Council Monday, June 17,

2024. City Council for a decision on Monday, July 15, 2024.

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting is Monday, July 8, 2024 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor

Monday, December 11, 2023 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Randy Davis called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Planning Commission Members, Sandy Sawyer, Josh Nichols, Alexis 
Noggle, Anna Tobolski, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, Councilmember Liaisons Caleb Phillips and John 
Walden, City Manager Bob Bolz, Building Inspector Clay Moss, and Zoning Administrative Assistant
Stacy Harris. 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE: City Manager Bob Bolz led invocation and pledge. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS: None 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Motion to approve the agendim�de by A. Tobolski; second by A. 
Noggle. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: Motion to approve the regular meeting minutes held on Monday, 
October 9, 2023, made by J. Nichols; second by S. Sawyer. Vote carrietj\rnanimously in favor. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
',_ ->-'> "-

7. ANX-C2400048: Dawson County BOE has petitioned}o annex):,(il acres ofi'Mf>'Q�3 005, located at 
516 Allen Street, with a county zoning of C-CB (Commµnity .�usiress Commercial �\�trict) to City Zoning 
INST (Institutional District). Publicl;leafing Dates: Plan�lngcgmmission on Decem1:Jef'11, 2023, and 
City Council on December 18, 2023. c;ity.Covncil for a decisiPQ on January 11, 2024. 

Chairperson Davis read the annexatiori(�quest aric:J conduc�edlre public hearing. Motion to open 
the public hearing made by S. Sawyer; s.e�qnd by A. Noggle. Vote c�r,ried unanimously in favor. 

No one spoke in favoridfthe request. 
,,-, - " 

-- ---- '"-� 

No one spoke in op#osition ofth�.request. 

Motion to close the public he)'lripg made by.A\Tobolski; second by J. Nichols. Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. ·' \ / .I 

COIJ)!Jlissidn Me111ber Tobols�ihad a couple oLquesti�l)s for the Planning Department. She asked if 

P?'i"so� County Board o: Com111li�ioner (BOC) opposed the annexation request. Ms. Harris stated 
the·�9c considered thi:r�_queston November 16th and they had no objections to the annexation. 
Com111,ission Member To.l;>�J5ki askecj the petition to annex into the city was made by Board of 
Education, Ms. Harris said'ye�.it was. 

J. NicholsiTl,cJe a motion to��hrove ANX-C2400048; second by A. Noggle. The vote carried three
:. . .· , .•... ,. l in favor (Noggle, Nichols, Sa',l{y�t) with one opposed (Tobolski).

' 8> ---/) 

8. ZSP C2400063: Atlanta Mptp}�6orts Park, LLC has petitioned to amend the site plan to convert the 
,_. "--'_\'>_/- -:-:;::".;_<'-"\/ takeout kitchen to a re5J�w.ant; located at 20 Duck Thurmond Road (TMP 070 049 001). Public Hearing 

Dates: Planning Commissibn on Monday, December 11, 2023, and City Council Monday, December 18, 
2023. City Council for a decision on Thursday, January 11, 2024. 

Chairperson Davis read the petition to amend the current site plan and conducted the public hearing. 
Motion to open the public hearing made by J. Nichols; second by A. Noggle. Vote carried unanimously 
in favor. 

The following people spoke in favor of the zoning request: 

Page 1 of 3



MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor

Monday, December 11, 2023 

• Joey Homans, 272 Hwy 9 South, Dawsonville, GA- Mr. Homans stated that his client would
like to revise the current site plan to convert the takeout kitchen at the go-kart clubhouse to
a restaurant. He further stated that his client would like to have the option of a restaurant
at the conference center.

• Jeremy Porter, 20 Duck Thurmond Rd, Dawsonville, GA - Mr. Porter stated that the
application for the restaurant was for 50-100 seats. He stated that the actual number of
seats would be 40, due to the limitations of the septic design and grease traps. Mr. Porter
stated that they were applying for a restaurant at the g<::>;l<�ftclubhouse, and they would like
the opportunity in the future to have a restaurant 9Lthe-conference center. They have no
design or concept plan.

The following person spoke in opposition to the request: 
• Dr. West Hamryka, 683 Duck ThurmondR,oad, Dawsonville,GA- Dr. Hamryka stated that

the additional traffic on Duck Thurmon.d .ind Highway 53 West cap not handle this request.
He also stated that he would like to irviteJhe Planning Commissioh 9\/t to his farm and hear
how loud the noise is and see how it rattfes his windows in his home.·.

Motion to close the public hearing made by A Nqggle; se.cor:id by J. Nich�ls. Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 

·- ., " 
Commission Member J. Nichols askeif Mr,,Porter and l\llf. Ho,111ans the hours of operation for the 
restaurant and would the restaurantb .. e.

· 
.. ppen to.members onlyo.r .. · .  ·.·.t· .. he public. Mr. Homas stated that

\ • • •  >._ ·- -· 

his client would follow the city ordinance�nd the stip�lations that\fvere approved at the September 
18, 2023, City CounciJMeet.ing. He further�tated thaHhe restaurant would be open to the public. 

' . . ' • ' \ 
: ', °', . •. / 

Commission Ms!ril�zr s. Sawyer a.:;ked Mr. Poherif [t 0ouldbe� sit-down dining style restaurant
and would alcohol be served. l'y'lr\Porter stated that yes, it woulc:i be a sit-down restaurant at the 
go-kart clubhouse, wittiasimple,rn(/nu. The restau}�nt at the conference center is a catering kitchen 
and t· .. h .. at .. w., .. o· .. ·.u·

l·d .be. the ba·s. e ki·t·c·h·e·n a.nd in .. t· .he future.-. m. ove to a sit-down dining. Mr. Porter further.... - -.-.

-

. ,. :,,., . . ' " .-·. . . . 
-'· :, 

. . 
,' . -· \ 

st�tei.Jthatalcohol would Ile stfved, and they will, apply and follow the state and local alcohol 
permits and regulatigns. Comrnis,�ion Membe.r S. ,Sawyer asked if the environmental health had 
appf9ved of the restaurant's use. l'y'lr, Porter said no since the plans were not approved through the 
Pla1111ing Department. 

'-'
:"_

--'

·._>
:  

-

_-·_-
\ 

:··---·. Chairpers?:9pavis asked Mr, P,prter if alcohol would be served in the restaurant only. Mr. Porter
said that is correct. 

Commission'j��l:>�rA. NoJg[iJasked Mr. Porter to clarify his request regarding the restaurant at
the go-kart clubhcn.1.�e ?rJge·:tonference center. Mr. Porter stated that he is requesting two
restaurants; one at tlie'�oqfer�nce center and the other at the go-kart clubhouse. He stated that at 
the present time he does Wot know what the restaurant at the conference center would look like or 
how many seats it would have. No plans have been designed for this restaurant. 

A. Tobolski made a motion for approval for the requested restaurant specifically for the go-kart
clubhouse center that will be based on the city guidelines; second by A. Noggle. Vote carried
unanimously in favor.

Page 2 of 3



MINUTES 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor

Monday, December 11, 2023 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORTS: Next Planning Commission Meeting is Monday, January 8, 2024. 
Sandy Sawyer stated that this would be her last Planning Commission Meeting. She will be serving on 
the City Council Post 3. Ms. Sawyer stated that she was thankful for the time served on the Planning 
Commission and looks forward to serving on City Council. 

ADJOURNMENT: Motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 p.m. made by A. Tobolski; second by A. Noggle. 
Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

Approved this ___ day of _____ _, 2024

Attested: _____ �==--'-��---� 
Stacy Harris, Zo11ing Administrafiye Assistant 

Rand/Dal/i�
1 

Commission Chairperson 

Alexis Noggle, Plannir,gcpmmissioner Post 1 

1qsh i'J1cJ6
°

ls, Planning ComrniS?ioner Post 2 

, Planning Commissioner Post 3 

Anna Tobolski, Planning Commissioner Post 4 
' ' ', 

', 

Page 3 of 3





❖ (ANX 13-005 & ZA 07-13-226) Annexation and Rezoned forTMP 093 044 from County RSR to Rl approved

on 09.09.2013

❖ (ANX C2200122) Annexation for TMP 093 046 approved on 10.17.2022

❖ (ZA C2200123) Rezoned for TMP 093 046 from Rl- R6 with conditions on 10.17.2022:

ANALYSIS 

1) Installation of sanitary lines and sewer manholes up to Perimeter Road right-of-way for future

sewer outfall service for TMPs 093 041, 093 063 and 093 033.

2) The applicant will donate funds for future intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy

9 South. Funds in the amount of $1,000.00 per unit shall be donated prior to each building permit

approval. Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credits if the City adopts said fees in the

future.

3) The applicant will donate funds for the future intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and

Hwy 53 East. Funds in the amount of $500.00 per unit shall be donated prior to each building

permit approval. Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credits if the City adopts said fees

in the future. Condition warranted due to proposed right turn movement of 230 vehicles/day is

92% of 250 vehicles/day threshold. The study did not include future bypass road passenger and

truck traffic.

4) Condition warranted due to proposed left turn on Perimeter Road and development driveway

#1. Condition warranted due to proposed left turn movement of 215 vehicles/day is 86% of 250

vehicles/day threshold. The study did not include future bypass road passenger and truck traffic.

Sec 109.46 requires lane for safe operations.

• 195 Single Family Homes that will be permitted as apartments

• Homes will range from 1,000 to 1,500 square feet, mixture of 2 to 3 bedrooms

• Clubhouse, Pool, and Dog Park

• 33.98 acres with a density of 5.74 units per acre

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends approval of the site plan with the following condition: 

1) Approval of the subject concept plan is contingent upon additional required approvals from

Environmental Protection Division (EPD) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACoE).

2) Approval of this concept plan is not an approval of any variances excluded from this request or other code

non-compliance. Engineered plans must demonstrate compliance with all relevant City or other

applicable jurisdiction codes.

2 















LETTER OF INTENT 

Jim Chapman Construction Group ("Jim Chapman") submits this letter of intent 

regarding an amended site plan. 

The City approved the current site plan and zoning district on October 17, 2022. The 

proposed site plan amendment allows Jim Chapman Construction Group to proceed with the 

development consistent with the spirit and intent of the approved site plan. 

Jim Chapman intends to the amend the site plan to relocate residential units to make the 

development feasible without changing the number of approved units, entrances, or amenities. 





CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

0
EcE1ven 

n APR 1\r� U
BY: Kz 

Jim Chapman Construction Group submitted a proposed site plan with the application 

filed on April 3, 2024 and a revised proposed site plan on April 11, 2024. City Staff provided the 

following comments after reviewing the application to amend the site plan and the revised 

proposed site plan: 

1) southwest po1tion of site (adjacent to Unit 3-01) private road terminates without turn
around (cul-de-sac);

2) private road providing access to Maintenance Building between Unit 2-01 and Unit 4-
06 terminates without turn-around (cul-de-sac);

3) Unit 36-01 is depicted within the setback;
4) Units 09-01 through 09-05 are depicted within wetlands; and
5) sidewalks depicted without 2' beauty strip.

Jim Chapman Construction Group hereby submits the second revised site plan and this 

amendment with attachments to address Staff's comments. 

1) The second revised site plan depicts the Dead End Fire Apparatus Turnaround detail,
which was designed in accord with the 2018 International Fire Code that applies
pursuant to Section 102-19 of the City of Dawsonville Code; road sections of less
than 150' do not require a turn-around (cul-de-sac). See "Exhibit A" attached hereto.

2) The second revised site plan depicts the private road providing access to the
Maintenance Building as a driveway less than 150' , and the Fire Code and City Code
do not require a turn-around (cul-de-sac). See "Exhibit A" attached hereto.

3) The second revised site plan depicts Unit 36-01 outside the setback.
4) The second revised site plat removes the wetland designation. Jim Chapman

Construction Group has filed preconstruction notification for the Group's nationwide
permit with the Corps of Engineers to disturb the wetland area and cannot disturb the
wetland area without approval from the Coi-ps of Engineers and compliance with any
permit issued for that purpose.

5) The City's former Planning Director approved the site plan with 5' sidewalks without
the 2' beauty strip as shown by "Exhibit B", which includes the October 18, 2023 site
plan that specifies "5.0 Cone. Sidewalk No Beauty Strip" and email communications
that include approval of the October 18, 2023 site plan on November 1, 2023. Jim
Chapman Construction Group revised the site plan thereafter for reasons unrelated to
the sidewalks/beauty strip, but approval of the site plan without the beauty strip
should be permitted based upon prior approval.











Filed in Office: 03125120·13 01:00PM 

Deed Doo: ESTO 

0k 01065 Pg 051JS.!J5il6 
Georgia Tr,msferTag Paid : $0,00 
Jusffn Power clerk.of Court 

Documtisl prql,I� br•ndwilrn 
l'ffl)rdtd! n:luo, tQ: 

Pof1t4y&SuHtvaa 
P.O.&x/56
Da""""IT• G- 3053< 

POLATTY & SULLIVAN 
Allol'ili\yo at Law 

Dawson County 
0422013000308 

!ltS canron Street 
Roowall, Georgia 30076 

(770) 992-3480

Public Squal\'> 
Dawoonvlllo, Ga. 30534 

(705) 285-3281

EXECUTOR'S DEED 

• STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF DAWSON 

THISINDEN1'URll.mndcthe /9ih
dayof L/71..� 

two thousand thirte<n (2013), betwem, 

CURTIS R. ANDERSON lll1d KAREN A. MoCORD 

in the year 

as Co-Executors of1he last will and testament of JOHN BEV ANDERSON, slkla. J.B. ANDERSON, lllte of the State of 
Georgia,. and CollnlyofDawson, de�, of1hc First Parf. h�inafle.r CWJe<l Oranlor. and 

CURTIS R. ANDERSON nnd KAREN A. McCORD 

of the, State of Georgia and County af Dam:on, of the Second Patt, hereinafter called Oranleo (lite words "Gran lorn ond 
nG!'llll!ee" to lnc!uda their respective hci� successors and l,ISJligns where tfll! content requires or permits), 

WtrNESSETH: 11uu 1I1� snfrl Orintor (acling under and by vfrfu.e of the power and authority contninW ln tlte 
!aid will, the snme llaving heeil duly probnte<J and recorded in the Pro� Court of Dawson OJunty, Georgia), for Md in
consideration oflbc sum of'feN DOLLARS ($10,00) and other val!UW!e considerations in hand paid at Wld before 1he
scali11g and dc:Uvery of these pieSents, the recelp1 whereof is hereby acknowledged. has gran!e"1 bntg!lined, sold and
conveyed, and by these presents does grant. bargain, sell and convey unto the said Ornnte0y the folfowing-descnlied
propelf)I:

:D:!!ill.: 

All 1flet trnot or parcel of 1Bnd tying and being in Land Lots SI 0 and 511 of IIJe 4lh District of Dawson 
County. Geoxgia, and being more particut11dy described as follows: 

BEGINNJNG nt an il'l)n pin setnta fence comer on tile West line of Land Lot SJ I, which iron pins& is 
77.8 f� South of the Northwest oomerofLand Lot SI J and going.thence South 00 degrees 16 minm� 
EMt 1141,8 feet t1!ong a fence line to an iron pln set on the North right-ofMway of 1Jie DnMOnville ByM 
Pass; going thence n!ong thti North rigbt-of..way of the Dawsonville By•Pil!s Norlh 59 degrees 46 
minu!es E'.ast219.2 tcctto a pofnl: North 52 degrws 03 minutes &tsf 331J feet lo an iron pin ser; NottJ1 
53 degMeS 17 minllttll �325.0 feet to an iron pin set; North 61 degrees SO mi11u1es East 155.6 feel Co a 
poln� North 70 degrees 26 mlnul<s Eas1 214.4 feet to an Iron pin set; going th once North SS dcE""S 46 
minutes. West 216,0 feet to an iron pin found; going thence North 71 deS™s 40 minutes Bas! along a 
fence line, 379.4 feet to an iron pin found; going thence North 33 degrees 22 minutes East 444.8 feet to 
an iron pin fuand on lhoSoutll rigltt-of-way of Highway #53; g<ing tllenec along tllo Soulh rlgl,1-of-woy 
of Higi,Wll,Y #53 Norlh 53 degre,s 29 minutes W"" 792,8 feet to n pain� North 53 degr<oo 30 mlnu�, 
West 4S7.9 feet to an iron pin foun,!; going lbenco Soll1h 40 degrees 20 minute,; llasl 179,3 fool lo an 
tron pin, for.mdi go1ng theneo South 40 dcgree3 20 minutes East 304.2 feet to an it(ln pin found: going 
tl1ence afong ll hedge Soll1h 59 dc.grees 10 minutes West 306.3 feet !o on iron pin found; going thence 
Soltf.h 13 degrees 27 minutes Eu.st 268.9 feet to nn iron pin sel at a fence corner; going thence South 80 
degrees.14 minutes West JOJ.6 feel 10 an iron pin set; gaing thence South 89 d'egrees'28 mfnufes Wes! 
348.7 feel to a me� going !hence South 27 de� 35 minutes East 68,9 f� to II raJtroad lronj galng 
thl!nce idong.a fence South 83 degrees 20 rninule, West 149.3 focl to un Iron pin set inn fence comer on 
lho Wcst!inoofLnnd l-01 STI, which iron pin sot ls thoPOINTOFBBOINNINO. 

For descriptive purpose; referel'lce ts rt1.ede to survey for J,8. Anderson by Ch11rfes H, Carvet'. P.C.S. 

1\tps://search.gscoca.org/lmaglng/HTML5Vlswer.aspx?ld=62205232&key1=1065&key2.c505&coun!Y"42&coun1Yname=DAWSON&userid=246378&ap,.. 1/1 













Date: _j_/ 2021
Company 

William S. Wade, Manager LsJ

ESCROW AGENl:

Old Republic National Title Insurance

By:
Carrie Tullis

EXHIBIT "A-1"

Description of the Land

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 511 and in Fractional Land Lot
56 of the 4th District, 1" Section of Dawson County, Georgia, being 4.47 acres as
depicted on a su1Vey prepared for JSW Gee Comer, LLC, dated April 29, 2020, by
Davis Engineering & Su1Veying, bearing the seal and certification of Jason D. Watkins, 
Georgia Registered Land Su1Veyor No. 3241, which su1Vey is incorporated herein by
reference for a more complete description of the Property, and said Property being more
particularly described as follows In accordance with said survey: 

BEGINNING at a Right of Way Monument located on the Northernmost point of the
mitered intersection of the Southwesterly right of way line of Georgia Highway 53
(variable right of way) and the Northwesterly right of way line of Perimeter Road
(variable right of way); thence proceed along the mitered intersection of the
Southwesterly right of way line of Georgia Highway 53 and the Northwesterly right of
way line of Perimeter Road South 10 degrees 26 minutes 53 seconds West a distance 
of 42.62 feet to a point which Is the Southernmost point of the mitered intersection of the 
Southwesterly right of way line of Georgia Highway 53 and the Northwesterly right of
way line of Perimeter Road; thence proceed along the Northwesterly right of way line of
Perimeter Road the following courses and distances: along the arc of a 1156.23-foot
radius cu1Ve to the right, an arc distance of 652.01 feet to a Right of Way Monument
(said arc being subtended by a chord bearing South 59 degrees 13 minutes 41 seconds
West, a chord distance of 643.41 feet); South 78 degrees 36 minutes 46 seconds West
a distance of 40.64 feet to a Right of Way Monument; North 30 degrees 05 minutes 22
seconds West a distance of 35.55 feet to a Right of Way Monument; South 63 degrees
02 minutes 24 seconds West a distance of 23.68 feet to a Right of Way Monument: 
South 28 degrees 24 minutes 56 seconds East a distance of 30.83 feet to a Right of
Way Monument; and, South 72 degrees 42 mlnutes 45 seconds West a distance of
63.16 feet to a point; thence leave the Northwesterly right of way line of Perimeter Road 
and proceed North 54 degrees 56 minutes 43 seconds West a distance of 222.31 feet 
to an Iron Pin Found (½" Crimp Top Pipe); thence proceed North 72 degrees 40 minutes
06 seconds East a distance of 379.45 feet to an Iron Pin Found (Axle at ½' Open Top 
Pipe); thence proceed North 34 degrees 22 minutes 06 seconds East a distance of
425.55 feet lo an Iron Pin Set (½" Rebar) on the southwesterly right of way line of 
Georgia Highway 53; thence proceed along the Southwesterly right of way line of
Georgia Highway 53 the following courses and distances: South 53 degrees 18 
minutes 11 seconds East a distance of 85.71 feet to a Right of Way Monument; North
38 degrees 21 minutes 38 seconds East a distance of 18.55 feet to a Right of Way
Monument: South 52 degrees 44 minutes 22 seconds East a distance of 196.76 feet to �

)jL,, 









❖ (ANX 13-005 & ZA 07-13-226) Annexation and Rezoned forTMP 093 044 from County RSR to Rl approved

on 09.09.2013

❖ (ANX C2200122) Annexation for TMP 093 046 approved on 10.17.2022

❖ (ZA C2200123) Rezoned for TMP 093 046 from Rl- R6 with conditions on 10.17.2022:

ANALYSIS 

1) Installation of sanitary lines and sewer manholes up to Perimeter Road right-of way for future

sewer outfall service for TMPs 093 041, 093 063 and 093 033.

2) The applicant will donate funds for future intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy

9 South. Funds in the amount of $1,000.00 per unit shall be donated prior to each building permit

approval. Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credits if the City adopts said fees in the

future.

3) The applicant will donate funds for the future intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and

Hwy 53 East. Funds in the amount of $SOD.OD per unit shall be donated prior to each building

permit approval. Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credits if the City adopts said fees

in the future. Condition warranted due to proposed right turn movement of 230 vehicles/day is

92% of 250 vehicles/day threshold. The study did not include future bypass road passenger and

truck traffic.

4) Condition warranted due to proposed left turn on Perimeter Road and development driveway

#1. Condition warranted due to proposed left turn movement of 215 vehicles/day is 86% of 250

vehicles/day threshold. The study did not include future bypass road passenger and truck traffic.

Sec 109.46 requires lane for safe operations.

• 195 Single Family Homes that will be permitted as apartments

• Homes will range from 1,000 to 1,500 square feet, mixture of 2 to 3 bedrooms

• Clubhouse, Pool, and Dog Park

• 33.98 acres with a density of 5.74 units per acre

2 











3 

4. Relief, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of these regulations and will not
be injurious to the neighborhood or general welfare in such a manner as will interfere with or
discourage the appropriate development and use of adjacent land and buildings or unreasonably
affect their value;

Answer: 

Yes. The R-6 zoning district is appropriate for the property and the pond and cul-de-sac within the 

the setback will not impact adjacent land. 

__________________________________ and, 

5. The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant;

Answer: 

Yes. The Special circumstances result from the specifics characteristics of the property, and best 

engineering practices. 

__________________________________ and, 

6. The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the legal use of the
land, building, or structure;

Answer: 

Yes. 

__________________________________ and, 

7. The variance is a request to permit a use of land, building or structures which is permitted by
right in the district involved.

Answer: 

Yes. 

The applicant, or designated agent, MUST* attend the public hearings for the variance 
request to be considered. 

*NOTE: If the applicant of a petition before the Planning Commission fails to attend the public
hearing, then the Planning Commission may deny the subject petition or may require re
advertisement of the subject petition at the expense of the applicant.

REV 01.31.2023 





LETTER OF INTENT 

Jim Chapman Construction Group ("Jim Chapman") submitted a request to amend the 

site plan on April 3, 2024 and revised the proposed site plan on April 11, 2024 based upon 

consultation with City staff and engineering review. The City provided detailed comments 

regarding the proposed site plan on April 18, 2024, and Jim Chapman revised the site plan on 

May 7, 2024 based upon the detailed comments and engineering review. The variance request 

seeks to reduce the front building setback from 3 0 feet to IO feet along Perimeter Road as shown 

on the May 7, 2024 site plan to accommodate a stormwater pond for 85 linear feet and to 

accommodate a cul-de sac for 17 5 linear feet. 

The variance renders the development feasible without changing the number of approved 

units, entrances, or amenities and will have insignificant (if any) impact upon adjoining property 

as the variance is from the Perimeter Road setback. 









ANALYSIS 

• 25 two-story Townhomes

• Minimum 2,100 square footage per unit with garage

• 4.68 acres with a density of 5.34 units per acre

• The development will require a driveway permit through the Georgia Department of Transportation

(GDOT).

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Should the Planning Commission choose to grant the R-6 rezoning for this project, the following conditions are 

recommended by the Planning Department: 

1. Install privacy fence along the front, sides, and rear lot lines 1- 25

2. Install privacy fence and a planted buffer along TMP D03 015

3. Install a planted buffer along Northwest LL 441

4. Install brick and/or rock water table fa�ade on the front of the townhomes

5. Entrance monument shall be the same brick and/or rock material

6. Town homes shall be a minimum of 1,600 sq feet heated floor space

2 



















llES DAVIS ENGINEERING 

&SURVEYING 
-------- Est. 2009 --------
CIVIL ENGINEERING I LAND SURVEYING I CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT 

May 8, 2024 

City of Dawsonville Planning & Zoning Department 

415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 

Dawsonville, GA 30534 

RE: Letter of Intent- Rezoning Application for TMPs D03-014 and 092B-Oll 

To whom it may concern: 

Davis Engineering & Surveying has prepared the enclosed plan for Tanco Investments, LLC. This project is 

located off Highway 9 North within the City of Dawsonville parcels D03-014 and 092B-011. This 4.68 acre 

site is currently developed with one residence that is proposed to be demolished while the remainder of 

the property is undeveloped. The proposed development consists of the construction of two-story 

townhomes (min. 2,100 S.F./unit) with garages and concrete driveways. The development will have an 

asphalt road, concrete sidewalks, necessary stormwater management ponds, and landscaping to meet City 

ordinance requirements. 

The current zoning for these parcels is Highway Business and Light Industrial. The rezoning request is for 

Residential Multi-family (R-6). The proposed density requested for this development is 6 units/acre per the 

zoning district. The conceptual plan includes 25 lots, however potential reconfiguring during the 

construction document phase could allow for additional lots. The development will require a driveway 

permit through the Georgia Department ofTransportation. 

The parcels to the north and northwest are zoned R-3 Single Family Residential and have residential homes. 

The parcels to the southwest are zoned R-6 Residential Multi-family with a proposed townhome 

development under construction. The parcel to the northeast is zoned R-1 Restricted Single Family 

Residential and has an existing residence on the property. The parcels to the southeast are zoned HB 

Highway Business with existing residences on the parcels as well. 

The 2023 Dawsonville Comprehensive Plan shows the subject property as Residential (092B-Oll) and 

Gateway Corridors (D03-014). 

Water, sanitary sewer, gas, and electricity providers are currently available to the subject property. The 

impact to the existing utilities will be consistent with the area. 

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact our office at 706-265-1234. 

Thank you, 

�J15� 
Rachel Burton, PLA 

Davis Engineering & Surveying, LLC I 24 Dawson Village Way S I Dawsonville, GA 30534 

Ph: 706.265.1234 I Web: www.DavisEngineers.com 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
T. Wesley Robinson
Hulsey, Oliver & Mahar, LLP
PO Box 1457
Gainesville, GA 305D3

DEED ONLY, NO TITLE WORK 

LIMITED WARRANTY DEED 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF HALL 

Fried in Office: D2/22/2DI6 ·\2:DDPM 
Deed Dae: WO 
131< 01184 Pg 0466-D<IBB 
Georgia TransferTaxPaid $0.00 
Justin Power Clerk of Court 
Dawson County 
0422016000219 

This indenture, made this _J_J day of Fe.bn,a?,/, 2016, between RALPH
ERNEST HARBEN, JR., (hereinafter called "Grantor")nd HELEN MARIE HARBEN
LEE, (hereinafter called "Grantee"). 

(The words "Grantor" and �Grantee" shall include their respective heirs, successors and 
assigns, where the context requires or permits, and shall include the singular and plural, 
and the masculine, feminine, and neuter, as the context requires). 

WITNESSETH that Granter, for and in consideration of a transfer from one entity to 
another with common ownership, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has bargained, sold, and does by these 
presents, bargain, sell, remise, release, and forever quitclaim to Grantee all the right, 
title, interest, claim, or demand which the Granter has or may have in and to the 
following described Property, to wit: 

https ://search .gs ceca . org/I mag ing/HTML5Viewer.a spx? id =676 76369&key1 =1184&key2 =466&county=4 2&cou ntyname=DA WSO N&use rid= 725809&a p. . 1 /3 



' .  

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in the city of Dawsonville, 
lying in Land Lots 442, 375 and 376 of the 4th District, 1" Section of 
Dawson County, Georgia being more particularly described as follows: 

Begin at a point on the North right of way of Highway 9 North, also known 
as State Highway 9, (having a 60 foot right of way) at the intersection of 
said right of way with the west line of Land Lot 442, run thence North 
following said Land Lot Line 460 feet to an iron pin at the northwest corner 
of said land lot, being the intersection of Land Lots 441, 442, 375, and 
376, running thence westerly following the south line of Land Lot 376 a 
distance of 281 feet to an iron pipe at a point, run thence North 02 
degrees, 30 minutes west 282.26 feet to an iron pin; run thence North 67 
degrees OB minutes, 22 seconds east 111.79 feet to and iron pin; run 
thence North 81 degrees 49 minutes, 02 seconds East 176.86 feet to an 
iron pin; run thence easterly 55 feet to a point at the property now or 
formerly belong to H. A Grogan; run thence southeasterly following said 
property line 152 feet to a point; running thence southeasterly 294 feet 
along the property now or formerly belonging to H.A. Grogan to a point at 
property now or formerly belonging to Sarah West; run thence 
southwesterly flowing property now or formerly belonging to Sarah West 
162 feet to a point at property now or formerly belonging to Hubert Bailey; 
running thence southwesterly 172 feet following property now or formerly 
owned by Huber Bailey to a point; run thence south 29.5 feet following 
property now or formerly of Hubert Bailey to a point; running thence 98 
feet in a southeasterly direction following the line of property owned by 
Hubert Bailey to a point on the northern right of way of said Highway 9 
North; running thence westerly following the northern right of way of 
Highway 9 North to its intersection with the western line of Land Lot 442 
and the point of beginning. Said property consisting of four acres and 
known as 401 Highway 9 North. 

Said property being the same property described in a Deed of Assent from 
Ralph Ernest Harben, as the executor of the estate of Lois Harben to 
Helen Marie Harben Lee and Ralph Ernest Harben, Jr. dated December 7, 
2012, recorded at Deed Book 1050, Page 444-446 and re-recorded at 
Deed Book 1096, Page 350�352, aforesaid records. 

The intent of this conveyance is to convey all that property located at 401 
Highway 9 North, including but not limited to all of tax parcel nos. D03 014 and 
092B 011. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said Property unto the said Grantee so that neither 
the Granter nor its successors or assigns nor any other person or persons claiming 
under Granter shall at any time claim or demand any right, title, or interest to the said 

https:/ /search .gs ceca. org/I magi ng/HTML5Viewer. aspx?id=6 7676369&key1 = 11 84&key2=466&co u nty=4 2 &countyname=DAWSON&userid =725809&a p. • 2/3 





' . 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

T. Wesley Robinson 
Hulsey, Oliver & Mahar, LLP 
PO Box 1457 
Gainesville, GA 30503 

DEED ONLY, NO TITLE WORK 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF HALL 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

This indenture, made this JJ. day of vbru av
ERNEST HARBEN, JR., (hereinafter called "Grantor") 
LEE, (hereinafter called "Grantee"). 

Filed in Office: 02/22/20·16 12:00PM 
Deed Doc: QCD 
Bl< 01184 Pg 0469-0474 
Georgia TransferTaxPaid $0.oa 
Justin Power Clerk. of Court 

�wson County 
042201600D220 

, 2016, between RALPH 
nd HELEN MARIE HARBEN 

(The words "Grantor'' and "Grantee" shall include their respective heirs, successors and 
assigns, where the context requires or permits, and shall include the singular and plural, 
and the masculine, feminine, and neuter, as the context requires). 

WITNESSETH that Granter, for and in consideration of a transfer from one entity to 
another with common ownership, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has bargained, sold, and does by these 
presents, bargain, sell, remise, release, and forever quitclaim to Grantee all the right, 
title, interest, claim, or demand which the Granter has or may have in and to the 
following described Property, to wit: 

The following tracts of land: 

Tract 1(a): 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in the town of Dawsonville, 
originally known as part of lot of Land number 440, and bounded as follows: 
beginning where the original line crosses the Dahlonega Highway; thence 
north along said highway one hundred sixty-eight (168) feet; thence 
Northwest eighty-five (85) feet; then North One Hundred seventy-two (172) 
feet; thence north-west one hundred fifty-eight (158) feet to said original 
line; thence South along said original line to the point of beginning. 

https: //search.gsccca .org/!mag ing/HTM L5Viewer. aspx?id=6 767637 0&key1 = 11 84&key2=469&county=4 2 &co u ntynam e= DAWSO N&userid= 725809&a p. • • 1 /6 



Beginning at a stake on the Northwest side of the right-of-way of State 
Highway No. 9 at the present property line between the parties herein; 
thence Southwest along said right-of-way a distance of ten (10) feet; thence 
in a northwesterly direction a distance of Ninety-eight (98) feet to a stake 
corner; thence in a Northerly direction a distance of twenty-nine and one
half (29 ½) feet, to the post on the property line of said parties of the second 
part; thence in a southerly direction along the present property line of said 
parties to the point of beginning. Said deed from Grady Shoemaker to W. 
Carson Britt and Irene Britt recorded in Deed Book "T" page 587. Deed 
from W. Carson Britt and Irene Britt to Sara Taylor and B. R. Taylor, Jr. 
being recorded in Deed Book "U," page 367 all of the records of Dawson 
County, Ga. 

This being the property described in a Warranty Deed from W. Carson Britt 
and Irene Britt to Ralph E. Harben, dated June 19, 1944, recorded in Deed 
Book U, pages 554-55, Dawson County Records. 

Tract 1(b): 

All that tract or parcel of land being in the town of Dawsonville, originally 
known as part of the lot of land Number 442, and bounded as follows: 
Beginning where the original line crosses the Dahlonega Highway; thence 
north along said highway one hundred sixty-eight (168) feet; thence no/th
west eighty-five (85) feet; thence north one hundred seventy-two (172) feet; 
thence northwest one hundred fifty-eight (158) feet to said original line; 
thence South along said original line to the point of beginning. This being 
the same property described in a deed from Grady Shoemaker to W. 
Carson Britt and Irene Britt except a strip in the Southeast corner of said 
property deed by W. Carson Britt and Irene Britt to 8. R. Taylor , Jr. and 
Sara W. Taylor described as follows: Beginning at a stake on the Northwest 
side of the right-of-way of State Highway No. 9 at the present property line 
between the parties herein; thence Southwest along said right-of-way a 
distance often (10) feet; thence in a Northerly direction a distance of Ninety
eight (98) feet; to a stake corner; thence in a Northerly direction a distance 
of twenty-nine and one-half (29 ½) feet to a post on the property line of said 
parties of the second part; thence in a Southerly direction along the present 
property line of said parties to the point of beginning. 

This being the property described in a Warranty Deed from Ralph E. Harben 
to Lois P. Harben, dated August 23, 1947, recorded in Deed Book V, page 
352, Dawson County records. 

Tracts 1(a) and 1(b) each describe the same approximately one (1) acre 
parcel of land, commonly known as 401 Highway 9 North, Dawsonville, GA, 
currently designated as tax parcel D03 014, on which the home formerly 
belonging to Ernest Harben, Sr. and Lois Harben is located. 

https ://search .gsccca .org/I mag ing/HT MLSViewer. aspx?id=6 76763 7 0&key1 =11 84&key2=469&co unty=4 2&countyn am e=DAWSO N&userid= 725809&a p. . 2/6 



Tract 2(a): 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 442, 375, and 
376 of the 4111 District and 1st Section of Dawson County, Georgia and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the p oint at the comer of the intersection of Land Lots 441, 
442, 375 and 376, said District and Section, said point being the point where 
property now or formerly belonging to Mrs. G. D. Castleberry intersections 
with the property now belonging to Lois P. Harben and the property of Mrs. 
Sarah L. West being conveyed herein; running thence in a westerly direction 
along the property formerly belonging to Mrs. G. D. Castelberry and the 
lands now or formerly belonging to G. A. Findley and Dorothy Findley and 
following the Land Lot line common to Land Lots 441 and 376 a distance of 
281 feet to a rock corner at the land formerly owned by Homer Newton 
under deed recorded in Deed Book W page 99, Dawson County records; 
running thence in a northerly direction along said land formerly belonging to 
Homer Newton a distance of 293 feet to a point at a rock corner; running 
thence in a northeasterly direction along said land fonnerly belonging to 
Homer Newton a distance of 343 feet to a point at the intersection of land 
now or formerly belonging to N. A. Grogan; running thence in a 
southeasterly direction along said land formerly belonging to N. A. Grogan 
152 feet along a fence line to a pine tree; thence along said lands formerly 
belonging to N. A. Grogan following the fence line 294 feet to a fence 
corner; run thence in a southwest direction following a fence line162 feet to 
a point at land of Lois P. Harben, said point being a fence corner and being 
located 164 feet in a ___ direction as measured along said lands of 
Mrs. Lois P. Harben and following the fence line 164 feet to the point of 
beginning. The property being herein conveyed being part of the same 
property conveyed to Mrs. Sarah L. West by deed from Hoyt Brannon dated 
October 23, 1919, recorded in Deed Book B, page 262, Dawson County 
Records, and being part of the property conveyed to W. R. Sleuder by deed 
recorded in a Deed Book O, page 180, Dawson County Records, and 
containing three acres more or less. 

This is the same property described in a Warranty Deed from Sarah West to 
Ralph E. Harben, dated May 26, 1973, recorded at Deed Book 22, page 
351-352, Dawson County Records.

Tract 2(b): 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in the City of Dawsonville, 
lying in Land Lots 442, 375, and 376 of the 4th District, 1 st Section, 
Dawson County, Ge9rgia, being more particularly described as follows: 

hltps ://search .gsccca .erg/I mag ing/HTM LSViewer. aspx?id=676763 7 O&key 1 = 11 84&key2=469 &coun ty=4 2&cou ntyna me=DA WSO N&use rid= 725809&a p. • 3/6 



TO FIND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, BEGIN at a point on the north 
right of way of Highway 9 North, also known as State Highway 9, (having 
a 60 foot right of way) at the intersection of said right of way with the west 
line of Land Lot 442, run thence North following said Land Lot Line 460 
feet to an iron pin at the northwest corner of said land lot, being the 
intersection of Land Lots 441, 442, 375, and 376, and being the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; running thence westerly following the south line 
of Land Lot 376 a distance of 281 feet to an iron pipe at a point, run 
thence North 02"30' West 282.26 feet to an iron pin; run thence North 
67'08'22" East 111.79 feet to an iron pin; run thence North 81 '49'02" East 
176,86 feet to an iron pin; run thence easterly 55 feet to a point at the 
property now or formerly belong to H. A. Grogan; run thence southeasterly 
following said property line 152 feet to a point; running thence 
southeasterly 294 feet along the property now or formerly belonging to H. 
A. Grogan to a point at property now or formerly belonging to Sarah West;
run thence southwesterly following property now or formerly belonging to
Sarah West 162 feet to a point at property now or formerly belonging to
Hubert Bailey; running thence in a northwest direction 164 feet following
the line of property now or formerly belonging to Lois Harben to the POINT
OF BEGINNING.

This being the same property described in a Deed of Assent from Ralph 
Ernest Harben, as the executor of the estate of Ralph Ernest Harben, filed 
of record Dec·ember 10, 2012 recorded in Deed Book 1050, pages 447-
448, Dawson County records, and re-recorded on February 20, 2013 at 
Deed Book 1096, Page 350-352, aforesaid records. 

Tracts 2(a) and 2(b) each describe the same approximately three (3) acre 
parcel of land, lying to the north of the property described in 1(a) and 1(b), 
and currently designated as tax parcel 092B 011. 

Tract 3: 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in the city of Dawsonville, 
lying in Land Lots 442, 375 and 376 of the 4th District, 1 51 Section of 
Dawson County, Georgia being more particularly described as follows: 

Begin at a point on the North right of way of Highway 9 North, also known 
as State Highway 9, (having a 60 foot right of way) at the intersection of 
said right of way with the west line of Land Lot 442, run thence North 
following said Land Lot Line 460 feet to an iron pin at the northwest corner 
of said land lot, being the intersection of Land Lots 441, 442, 375, and 
376, running thence westerly following the south line of Land Lot 376 a 
distance of 281 feet to an iron pipe at a point, run thence North 02 
degrees, 30 minutes west 282.26 feet to an iron pin; run thence North 67 

ht!ps ://sea rch.gsccca. org/lmag ir1g/HTM L5Viewer.aspx?id =676763 7 0&key1 = 11 84&key2=469&county=4 2&countyn ame= DA WSO N&use rid=725809&ap. . 4/6 



degrees 08 minutes, 22 seconds east 111.79 feet to and iron pin; run 
thence North 81 degrees 49 minutes, 02 seconds East 176.86 feet lo an 
iron pin; run thence easterly 55 feet to a point at the property now or 
formerly belong to H. A. Grogan; run thence southeasterly following said 
property line 152 feet to a point; running thence southeasterly 294 feet 
along the property now or formerly belonging to H.A. Grogan to a point at 
property now or formerly belonging to Sarah West; run thence 
southwesterly following property now or formerly belonging to Sarah West 
162 feet to a point at property now or formerly belonging to Hubert Bailey; 
running thence southwesterly 172 feet following property now or formerly 
owned by Huber Bailey to a point; run thence south 29.5 feet following 
property now or formerly of Hubert Bailey to a point; running thence 98 
feet in a southeasterly direction following the line of property owned by 
Hubert Bailey to a point on the northern right of way of said Highway 9 
North; running thence westerly following the northern right of way of 
Highway 9 North to its intersection with the western line of Land Lot 442 
and the point of beginning. Said property consisting of four acres and 
known as 401 Highway 9 North. 

Tract 3 being the same property described on Exhibit "B" in a Deed of 
Assent from Ralph Ernest Harben, as executor of the estate of Lois 
Harben to Helen Marie Harben Lee and Ralph Ernest Harben, Jr. dated 
December 7, 2012, filed of record December 10, 2012 recorded at Deed 
Book 1050, Page 444-446 and re-recorded on November 20, 2013 al 
Deed Book 1096, Page 350-352, aforesaid records. 

The description of Tract 3 encompasses the land described in Tracts 1 (a), 
1(b), 2(a) and 2(b) in a single description and contains approximately 4 
acres in total. 

The intent of this conveyance is to convey all that property located at 401 
Highway 9 North, including but not limited to all of tax parcel nos. 003 014 and 
0928 011. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said Property unto the said Grantee so that neither 
the Granter nor its successors or assigns nor any other person or persons claiming 
under Granter shall at any time claim or demand any right, title, or interest to the said 
Property or its appurtenances. 

htlps:/ /search.g sccca .org/I maging/HT ML5Viewer.as px?id =67676 37 0&key1 = 1184&key2=469&co unty=4 2&cou ntynam e= DAW SO N&userid=725809&ap • • • 5/6 


















